
1 
 

CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 

     ADDENDUM 

Request for Proposal Title: Residential Recycling and Trash Carts, Parts and 

Related Products and Services   

  

Solicitation Number:    22-03     

Addendum Number:    01 

Issue Date of this Addendum:   June 10, 2022  

Solicitation Coordinator: Rich Nolan, Director of Operations, rnolan@cvwma.com 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS ADDENDUM 

 

The Central Virginia Waste Management Authority (CVWMA) is issuing this Addendum to the 

Request for Proposal named above to respond to questions CVWMA has received in writing to 

date.  Potential Offerors should incorporate the following into the Request for Proposal and 

acknowledge their receipt in their proposal.  

CVWMA’s response and revisions to RFP 22-03 are noted below in bold italicized text. 

1. SECTION 3 INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS. Paragraph 2. Submittal and Execution of 

Proposal: One (1) original printed proposal, delivered to the CVWMA offices, and an 

electronic copy of the proposal, submitted by the due date. Specifically, proposals must 

be typed or legibly printed in non-erasable ink. An electronic copy can be provided on a 

USB drive or emailed to rnolan@cvwma.com. All corrections made to any part of the 

proposal by the Offeror must be initialed in non-erasable ink.   

CVWMA RESPONSE:  One hardcopy must be submitted by 2pm on the due date.  An 

electronic copy shall also be provided with the hardcopy (on USB) or via email to Rich 

Nolan rnolan@cvwma.com by 2pm on the due date.    If there is any difference in the 

hardcopy and the electronic copy, the hard copy will prevail.  

2. SECTION 5.16 CART RECYCLING BUY-BACK PROGRAM: Offerors are encouraged to 

provide a buy-back program for unusable, damaged and worn-out Carts to be recycled.   

CVWMA RESPONSE:  Section 5.16 is deleted is hereby replaced with the following:  

SECTION 5.16 CART RECYCLING BUY-BACK PROGRAM:  Favorable consideration will be 

given to Offerors who provide a buy-back program for unusable, damaged and worn-out 
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Carts purchased under a resulting Contract and any injection molded, HDOE Carts, not 

manufactured by the Offeror, at the same rate of buyback.   

 

3. SECTION 5.10.6 Recycled Content Symbol and/or Climate Positive Information. 

CVWMA RESPONSE:  The following is hereby added to Section 5.10.6:  The required 

symbol may be embedded in the cart or included in the hot stamp or IML. 

4. SECTION 5.17. REQUIRED ASSET MANAGEMENT SOLUTION – Recycling and Refuse Carts 

shall be provided with automated software capable of inventory management up to and including 

final disposition, work order processing and reporting.  The data within the software shall be made 

available to the ordering agency no later than seven days from a written request, in all available 

formats, throughout the term of a resulting contract and any extensions or renewal periods.  

Appropriate training materials and live training courses (hard copy, electronic copy, web-based, 

power point or additional formats) must be provided to users at no cost at least annually. 

 
CVWMA RESPONSE:  The following is hereby added to Section 5.17:  The CVWMA will 
provide any computer hardware and/or mobile devices for the utilization of any 
software systems provided by the Offeror.   
 

OTHER ITEMS OF CLARIFICATION: 
 

1. How many people does the CVWMA predict will be in charge of managing the carts in the 
field after the roll outs?  
 
CVWMA Response:  CVWMA requires its collection Contractors to inventory, store, 
deliver new and remove Carts in the field.  CVWMA Contractors are required in 
accordance with respective Contracts to have adequate staffing to manage the Carts 
purchased by CVWMA.   
 

2. How many people does the CVWMA predict will be in the office “dispatching or managing 
customer calls” after the roll out?  
 
CVWMA Response:  CVWMA has 3 Customer Service Representatives and 1 Senior 
Customer Service Supervisor currently that handles customer calls and inquiries on an 
on-going basis.   On any initial roll-out staffing will be increased to accommodate call 
volume and inquiries. 
 

3. Is it the CVWMAs intent to add RFID readers to the collection vehicles during the contract 
to manage service verification? 

 
CVWMA Response:  CVWMA is considering purchasing technology to manage service 
verification.  It may be at the start of any resulting contract or could be implemented 
during the term of a resulting contract.  Offerors should plan to include in their proposal 
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their technology capabilities as it relates to both Cart management and service 
verification and any costs associated.  This can be included on the Cost Proposal Form 
in Section 7.   

 
4. Would CVWMA consider including a resin escalator that can be applied quarterly to the 

prices throughout the contract? 
 

CVWMA Response:  CVWMA recognizes that prices offered in a proposal will be based 
on current market prices of HDPE and we recognize the volatility of the resin market.  
CVWMA will consider an Offeror’s proposal of a resin escalator/de-escalator to be 
included in any resulting Contract.   Offerors should be specific in their proposal related 
to price adjustments anticipated throughout the 5-year initial term of a resulting 
contract.   

 
5. Will every home in each of the Counties of Henrico, Goochland and Hanover receive one recycling 

cart for the initial 100,000 cart rollout or will just the homes who opt in to receive recycling receive 
carts? 

 

CVWMA Response: Each Eligible Dwelling Unit will be provided a recycling Cart.  The 
program is not an “opt-in” or “opt-out” program.  All single-family homes are 
automatically eligible for the recycling program.  However, there may be some residents 
who refuse the recycling container during distribution.  If that is the case, CVWMA 
would instruct the successful Contractor to not force the customer to take the Cart.  
CVWMA will provide a list of addresses for the Contractor(s) in the initial roll-out.   

 
6. Will CVWMA provide staging yards within each county to provide crews locations closer to the 

delivery areas? If so, how many staging yards will be provided in each county? 
 

CVWMA Response: CVWMA will provide multiple staging yards throughout the various 
jurisdictions. The exact locations are not known at this time, however staging locations will 
be in close proximity to delivery areas.      

 
7. Could CVWMA please provide the addresses of the staging yards and will they be paved, gravel, 

or dirt? 
 

CVWMA Response: As noted above in #6 CVWMA has not determined staging yards at this time.  
 The surface of the staging areas is not known currently.  
 

8. How many pieces of literature will be attached to the carts and how does CVWMA expect the 
literature to be affixed to each cart (i.e.: tucked under the lid, door tag that will hang on the cart 
handle, bag tied to cart handle etc.), will CVWMA provide pre-stuffed bags and will crews be 
required to stuff literature into bags prior to delivery? 

 
CVWMA Response: CVWMA is working with the Recycling Partnership on grant funding for the 
roll out of recycling Carts.  Part of the funding includes distributing information with the Cart.  
CVWMA has not decided yet on how that information may be affixed to the Cart in the initial 
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roll-out.  If Offeror has specific recommendations or constraints on literature, it should be noted 
in their proposal.   

 
9. Will deliveries to alleyways be required for either of the counties? 

 
CVWMA Response: Most EDUs that will receive recycling carts at the start of the roll-out have 
very few if any alleys.  The delivery of trash carts in the cities of Hopewell, Petersburg, and the 
Town of Ashland will have alleys.  In those cases, we expect delivery to be on the curb.   

 
10. What are the days and hours that crews can work in the staging yards and deliver carts to the 

streets? 
 

CVWMA Response: This may vary, but generally work at the staging yards and distribution can 

begin at 7am and would need to be completed by dark.  Generally, work would be performed 

Monday through Friday, but Saturday is also an option for delivery.   

11. Are there any hard to service areas (i.e.: low hanging trees, low bridges, areas with access 

issues) or areas with gate codes? 

CVWMA Response: There will be very few obstacles for delivery of the recycling Carts in the 
initial roll-out.  There are some gated communities, and we will work with the localities on 
gaining access to those communities.  The City locations of Hopewell and Petersburg for the 
delivery of trash Carts may have some obstacles to overcome during delivery.  The CVWMA will 
do its best to identify these areas prior to delivery and work with the selected Contractor to 
address. 
 

12. Will there be deliveries to any business or commercial accounts and will any  receive more than 

one cart? 

 

CVWMA Response: Yes, this will be the case predominantly for trash Carts in the Cities of 

Hopewell and Petersburg.  There are some small businesses that are part of the residential 

collection and yes, some may need more than one cart.  These will be identified for the 

Contractor prior to finalizing the purchase and delivery and as we coordinate the roll-out with 

the selected Contractor(s). 

 

13. Will there be any residential accounts that will receive more than one cart? 
 

CVWMA Response: No on the roll-out of recycling Carts.  Yes,  on the roll-out of trash Carts in 
Hopewell and Petersburg.   

 
14. Will any extra or leftover carts need to be assembled or transferred to another location for 

storage? If carts will be transferred, could you please provide an address for the cart transfer 
location? 

 
CVWMA Response: Any extra recycling Carts after the initial roll-out will need to  be delivered 

to the Collection Contractor located at TFC, 122O6 Old Stage Road Chester, VA 23836.  Extra 
trash carts will be delivered to WM Richmond located at 1405 Gordon Ave, Richmond, 
VA 23224. 
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15. Will there be any deliveries to apartment complexes, townhomes, multi-family residences, or 
mobile home parks? If so, please identify the number of each type of residence. 

 

CVWMA Response: Yes, there will be cart deliveries to muti-family residences and some 
mobile homes for both trash and recycling.  At this time, we do not have exact numbers 
of either.  The Contractor will be provided the addresses prior to cart delivery. 

 
16. Are delivery maps and address lists available? If so, could CVWMA please provide those 

maps and address lists? 
 

CVWMA Response: Maps and address lists are currently being worked on and will be 
provided to the Contractor prior to delivery of the carts to EDUs. 

 
17. Is sticker application required? If so, will the county provide the stickers that will be 

applied to the carts? 
 

CVWMA Response: No stickers will be applied to the carts as part of this RFP.  The Carts 
should include CVWMA approved hot stamps and/or ILMs as outlined in the RFP. 

 
18. Would unloading/receiving carts and cart deliveries for all three counties need to occur 

simultaneously or would it be acceptable to deliver carts to one county first and then 
move on to the next county afterwards? 

 
CVWMA Response: Unloading and receiving cats and cart deliveries can be spread out 
over several weeks or months depending on the size and scope of the roll-out.  CVWMA 
will work with selected Contractor(s) on delivery roll-out as part of the planning process.   

 
19. What are the estimated quantities of carts that will need to be delivered to each of the 

three counties?   
 

CVWMA Response: Quantities of the initial recycling Carts is estimated as follows:  
Henrico County-~94,000; Goochland County - ~2,000 and Hanover County - ~4,000.  This 
may change slightly as we move forward.  Offerors should anticipate the roll-out of 
trash Carts in Hopewell and Petersburg to include approximately 8,600 and 12,000 units, 
respectively.  The Offeror should plan on more trash Carts than units to accommodate 
additional Carts.  CVWMA will be working with selected Contractor(s) in preparation for 
each of the Cart roll-outs.   

 


